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CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel) . . . Excuse me, this Land Use meeting, Committee meeting of
December 14, 2011, is now in session. May I please request first of all, that anyone that has
anything that makes noise, cell phone or otherwise, please disable it. We have with us this
afternoon, Vice-Chair of the Committee, Mike White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Aloha, Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Vice-Chair of the Council, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good afternoon.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: And Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you for being here. The rest of the Members are excused. And from
Corporation Counsel we have James Giroux; Executive Branch, we have Michele McLean.
MS. MCLEAN: Good afternoon.
CHAIR CARROLL: Danny Dias is here. Livit Callentine, Planner; the applicant's representative Mike
Newbro, land use consultant for land owner LU-24; John Romain, applicant LU-21; and William
Cambra, applicant LU-23; Pauline Martins, our Committee Secretary; and Kristine [sic]
Hamman, our Legislative Secretary [sic]. Members, we have before us today on our agenda
LU-24 COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING FOR 0.375
ACRES IDENTIFIED BY TMK (2) 2-6-09:017 (PAIA); LU-21 CHANGE IN ZONING FOR
THE BAMBOO INN AND BED & BREAKFAST (HANA); CONDITIONAL...LU-23
CONDITIONAL PERMIT AMENDMENT TO CONTINUE OPERATION OF A SALON
WITHIN THE COUNTY DISTRICT RU-0.5 RURAL DISTRICT (PUKALANI). We will now
have public testimony. It will be accepted on these items. Do we have anyone signed up for
public testimony? Those wishing to testify, if anybody hasn't signed up, please sign up at the
table. You're limited to three minutes, with one minute to conclude, if requested. Testifiers are
requested to state their name for the record and indicate who they are representing if anyone. We
will now begin public testimony. Ms. Hamman?
MS. HAMMAN: Mr. Chair, John Romain is the first and only testifier.
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .
MR. ROMAIN: Thank you. I don't know if this is the order or what. I have the application for Change
of Zoning for the Bamboo Inn in Hana, and I just wanted to add...I know Danny's going to
present the case. It has been recommended through the Planning Department, but there were
some restrictions put on it, and I would ask for...would like to ask for consideration to approve it
without the restrictions. The, the main thing is inconsistency. Mine was the first SBR
application to go through, and there was a lot of distrust and, and misunderstanding about the
Zoning Ordinance to begin with in Hana. And so, it was told to me after the fact that my
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restrictions were put on basically as a precedent that would allow them to be able to, to limit
some uses that might be really out of line. I went along with that and really...you know, just felt
that was the way to do it, but after I saw what happened with the next applicant that went through
without any restrictions whatsoever, I, I would like to have consideration of mine to be the same.
In all honesty, the way that it is right now, will work for me. I just think that as the Council said
during the thing, our hearing there, that the, the restrictions should only be in an extreme
situation and there was one precedent for it. And so as I say, I'm just...I'm asking for the
consideration mostly out of consistency, and second, if, if...Director Spence was at the meeting,
when I was there, he was in the second one, and he was able to talk it through and I think calmed
everybody down about it so, that's really all I have to say. I want to thank the Council
particularly for getting this ordinance. It's been a long haul for many of us that have been
waiting for it to happen and I certainly appreciate your consideration.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, we'll bring up that.. .your concerns when we come to your item and if the
Members have questions, I'll call you back down.
MR. ROMAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Does anybody have any questions now though?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. Chairman, just to...
CHAIR CARROLL: Please go back to the microphone. Mr. Pontanilla 9
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just to let you know about those, it's not
restrictions, but I understand it's conditions that normally, well, not normally but, if the Planning
Commission does feel that those conditions need to be put on, then they'll put it on. And we also
have the ability to add on to those conditions, but we'll take a look. Thank you.
MR. ROMAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Hamman?
MS. HAMMAN: Mr. Chair, Mr. Romain was the only person signed up to testify.
... END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . . .
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CHAIR CARROLL: Is there anyone else that wishes to testify in the gallery? Seeing none, if there's no
objection, we shall close public testimony for this afternoon.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed.

LU-24

COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING FOR
0.375 ACRE IDENTIFIED BY TMK: (2) 2-6-09:017 (PAIA) (C.C. No. 11-317)

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, our first one on the agenda is LU-24. The Committee is in receipt of a
proposed resolution entitled, REFERRING TO THE MAUI PLANNING COMMISSION
PROPOSED BILLS TO ENACT A COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND A CHANGE
OF [sic] ZONING FOR TAX KEY NUMBER (2) 2-6-009:017, PAIA, MAUI HAWAII. The
purpose of the proposed resolution is to refer to the Maui Planning Commission proposed bills to
respectfully amend the Paia-Haiku Community Plan and Land Use Map from
Public/Quasi-Public to Single-Family and to change the zoning from P-1 Public/Quasi-Public
District to R-3 Residential District for approximately 0.357 acres located at Paia, Maui, Hawaii
and identified as TMK (2) 2-6-09:017 to allow for the existing residential use. By
correspondence dated December 13, 2011, the Committee received copies of the environmental
assessment prepared for this matter and a summary of the environmental assessment prepared by
Mike Newbro, property owner consultant. Because Councilmember White has initiated this
item, I will ask him to make some opening remarks. Mr. Newbro, the landowner's consultant is
also here as a resource person to answer Members' questions. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you for hearing this item so quickly, and I, I
must say this has been a kind of a very encouraging item to deal with, because it came to us first
a at the, at the Mayor's Paia County on the Corner event. And I'm glad that Michele is here
today because she was there that very same day, and Mr. Newbro brought to us the concern about
what is in fact a mapping error during the, the Community Plan and zoning processes. And so
we stood there on the street corner and discussed how can we solve this, because in previous
circumstances, even though it's a...the County's error that brought about the, the, the
Public/Quasi-Public zoning and Community Plan situation, we put it back on the, the
homeowner to go through the environmental assessment process and do all the steps that would
be necessary if they were asking for it. But they never asked for this because the zoning was
changed and the Community Plan designation was changed by the County, without them even
knowing about it. So, Michele and I spoke with Mr. Newbro that day and then had a follow-up
meeting and to Michele's credit, she said, I think we can take care of this. And she actually
drafted the documents necessary to make the changes that are, that we're going through today, so
my hat's off to the Planning Department for showing the, the heart and flexibility to make this,
make this happen as quickly as possible. So, I don't remember the date of the community on
the.. .or the County on the Corner event, but it's before us today, and this is our way of showing
our residents that if we make a mistake, we're going to step up to the plate and fix it without
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putting them through the wringer again. So, Mr. Newbro has provided a wonderful synopsis,
three-page synopsis of what's taken place with this property, and I certainly ask for my
colleagues' support on this measure, and, and thank you to the Planning Department, and
Michele in particular. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. White. Ms. McLean, could you offer any comment?
MS. MCLEAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Councilmember White. It has been a very
cooperative effort, and I do acknowledge that there were mapping errors that were made, and that
the process as Councilmember White outlined does put that burden on the applicant to make that
correction, so we did want to help as much as we could to get the ball rolling on the corrections.
I'm happy to say that with our GIS system in place now, these kinds of things really shouldn't
happen in the future. That original mapping error truly seems to be because, you know, the, the
Sharpie that they used to draw the boundaries was really fat and the line between Single-Family
on the adjacent parcel and Public/Quasi-Public on the other just migrated slightly over time, and,
and put this parcel in the Public/Quasi-Public designation rather than Single-Family. So, with
the technology we have today, those kinds of things shouldn't happen, and actually going back to
some of the more recent community plan updates, shouldn't be occurring, but that is how it
happened unfortunately, and we are happy to help move it along and try to correct it. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. The floor is now open for discussion. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If I might just add one more thing. And they went back and looked at the
ordinance that put, that placed the other properties nearby, the cemeteries and, and church
properties in Public/Quasi-Public, and this, this parcel was not included in that ordinance, so
they've checked everything, so this is a...this should be a no-brainer. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I know at one time we had some problems on the
maps, 'cause of all the yellow stick 'ems, so I'm assuming that the Department have already
cleaned that...cleaned it up in regards to those stick 'ems on the map?
MS. MCLEAN: We actually have a...it's been an ongoing project to replace those hand-colored Post-it,
amended zoning maps, and actually in the very near future, we will be coming to Council to give
you the first round of presentations on digitizing all those maps and, and cleaning up these kinds
of things.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I had a call from...this was some time ago, about
a lot in Waiehu, lower Waiehu. Think the plantation had subdivided for their employees and this
one fellow, his front half was residential, his back half was conservation, so things like that, you
know, need to be corrected. Thank you.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussions before I call for the question. Not call for the question,
before I give my recommendation...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendations, Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, the Chair will entertain a motion to recommend adoption of the
proposed resolution entitled, REFERRING TO THE MAUI PLANNING COMMISSION
PROPOSED BILLS TO ENACT A COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND A CHANGE
IN ZONING FOR TAX KEY MAP NUMBER (2) 2-6-009:017, PAIA, MAUI, HAWAII.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved and seconded. Any further discussion? Seeing none, all in favor,
please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed?
VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair White, Councilmembers
Cochran, Pontanilla and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Baisa, Couch, Hokama and Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: ADOPTION OF REVISED RESOLUTION AND FILING OF
COMMUNICATION.
CHAIR CARROLL: Motion carried. Five "ayes", no "noes", and Members Mateo, Baisa, Couch, and
Hokama excused.
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LU-21

CHANGE IN ZONING FOR THE BAMBOO INN BED & BREAKFAST (HANA)
(C.C. No. 11-285)

CHAIR CARROLL: Moving on. The Committee is in receipt of a proposed bill entitled, A BILL FOR
AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE ZONING FROM URBAN RESERVE DISTRICT TO
SERVICE BUSINESS RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (CONDITIONAL ZONING) FOR
PROPERTY SITUATED AT 4869 UAKEA ROAD, HANA, MAUI, HAWAII. The purpose of
the proposed bill is to grant a request from John Romain for a Change in Zoning from Urban
Reserve District to Service Business Residential District (Conditional Zoning) to allow for the
operation of the Bamboo Inn Bed & Breakfast on approximately 0.622 acres located at
4869 Uakea Road, Hana, Maui, Hawaii. And I will now call on Planner Danny Dias.
MR. DIAS: Good afternoon, Chairman Carroll and Members of the County Land Use Committee. As
stated, the item before you is a request for a Change in Zoning for a property located at
4869 Uakea Road, along Hana Bay. The applicant, John Romain is requesting a Change in
Zoning from Urban Reserve to Service Business Residential, and the ultimate purpose of this
Change in Zoning is to operate a bed & breakfast on the property, as Urban Reserve is, is fairly
restrictive and does not allow for the operation of a B&B. With respect to the history of this
property, it has been in some sort of vacation rental use since the 1970's. For many years it
operated as the Heavenly Hana Inn Beach Cottage, and that is the reason why this property was
designated as Service Business Residential in the Hana Community Plan. Regarding zoning, this
property was originally zoned as Interim by the County; however, the Hana Community Plan
was adopted in 1994, and all Interim zoned lots in the Hana town area were comprehensively
zoned to be consistent with the Community Plan. The exception were eight lots that were
community planned as Service Business Residential. Obviously the applicant's lot was one of
them. No such designation existed in the Maui County Code, so these properties were zoned
Urban Reserve. So, for many years, the applicant waited and helped push forward an effort to
get an SBR ordinance adopted and that occurred in late 2009. As mentioned earlier, the ultimate
goal for this property is to operate the Bamboo Inn Bed & Breakfast. With respect to the
property itself, it's essentially a residential or rural type property, .622 acres in size, and located
adjacent to the Hana Kai Maui Resort. Currently, the property contains an existing single-family
residence and accessory dwelling. The main dwelling is approximately 1,150 square feet in size,
while the accessory dwelling is approximately 700 square feet in size, and both were constructed
in 1998. The applicant plans to rent out three bedrooms in the main dwelling while residing in
the accessory dwelling. I want to note that no further construction is proposed as part of this
request. Everything that the applicant needs for his operation exists on the property. Before I
conclude, I want to briefly go over the processing of this application. The applicant applied for
the CIZ in early 2010. He's doing all of the, the work on his own, so the Department assisted
him with making the application acceptable for agency review. We sent it out for agency review
in May of 2010, and as part of the review process, the Department of Public Works indicated that
there was some minor building permits that he needed to apply for, and he ultimately received
those in, I want to say, about September or October of 2010. So, with that, we scheduled it
before the Planning Commission, who kicked it to the Hana Advisory Committee. We met with
the Hana Advisory Committee in December of last year, and they gave their recommendation,
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which is part of the record. In April of this year, we went before the Maui Planning Commission,
who recommended approval of this project with the condition that the Hana Advisory Committee
proposed. So that concludes the Department's summary of the item. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. The floor is now open for discussion. The...so far we have only the
one thing the Chair has found is the discussion on if granting the applicant's request to delete
that, but the floor is now open if the Members have other things they would like to bring up.
Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Dias, how many districts do we have SBRs?
MR. DIAS: Two. One would be Hana. I believe there's about eight lots that have SBR designation in
the Community Plan, and the other is Wailuku and Kahului. There is about a dozen properties
that have SBR.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: None in Paia?
MR. DIAS: None.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Maybe for the Deputy Director. I, I know we have that SBR
Zoning, I guess, and when you look at the SBR Zoning and the Community Plan, they kind of no
match, right? Community Plan doesn't...it says that they don't want any of those short-term
rentals or B&Bs, so now if there's a challenge, if there's a challenge in court, Community Plan
versus SBR Zoning, how do we handle that?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. McLean?
MS. MCLEAN: Thank you. In terms of a court challenge, I would defer to Corporation Counsel, but I
don't believe the Hana Community Plan has language prohibiting B&Bs, so...and in the Hana
Community Plan, they establish the Service Business Residential Community Plan designation.
The description in the Community Plan says this includes single-family dwellings with small
scale service and neighborhood oriented businesses which are established in previously utilized
residential dwellings or other structures. The business use should be compatible with the
physical character of the residential neighborhood.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So the, the comment that was made by one of the testifier in
Hana is wrong then?
MS. MCLEAN: There did seem to be...that was one of the issues and, and Danny can.. .Danny was at
the Hana Advisory Committee meeting; I was not. I've reviewed the minutes though that there
did seem to be a little bit of confusion or misunderstanding about what SBR would mean. And
when...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: She cites the Community Plan. That's, that's all.
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MS. MCLEAN: Right. I don't know. Danny, do you want to comment on that, someone at the Hana
Advisory Committee talking about the SBR designation? Was it misunderstanding?
MR. DIAS: I, I think, like, like the testifier said, it was the first time that they've seen a request for SBR
and I think they were sort of apprehensive, understandably because this, this was completely new
to them. And so, I, I think part of the conversation was like so, if they get straight SBR, what
does that mean? Can you open up a, you know, a little store? What, what can you do? So, their
ultimate decision was, well, if he just wants to operate a bed and breakfast, then let's add a
condition, which would just allow him to operate the bed and breakfast. And that's sort of how
they dealt with their apprehensive.. .their apprehension to just, you know, allow him to do
whatever SBR would allow him.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. I, I, I might be mistaken about the Community Plan, but
I, I thought I saw that and, and I'll take a look when I get back to my office.
MS. MCLEAN: Were you thinking that there was text in the Community Plan?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. MCLEAN: Okay. There are in some of the other community plans, but we're not aware of
language in the Hana -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: None in Hana?
MS. MCLEAN: --in the Hana Community Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. The testifier mentioned that there were, or I guess the
applicant mentioned that there were conditions placed on his property that subsequently were not
placed on a similar application by the Advisory Committee. Could you explain to us what the
differences are?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. McLean?
MS. MCLEAN: Thank you, Chair. The Service Business...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And, and where to find them?
MS. MCLEAN: I'm sorry?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And where to find them?
MS. MCLEAN: Okay. The Service Business Residential District is Chapter 19.11 of the County Code.
And it lists just six permitted uses: single-family dwellings; duplex dwellings; greenhouses,
truck gardens and nurseries; SBR service establishments; SBR mixed-used establishments; and
bed and breakfast homes. So, the Hana Advisory Committee and also the Planning Commission
recommended that only single-family dwellings, duplex dwellings, and bed and breakfast homes
be allowed as Conditional Zoning for this property.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. MCLEAN: They wanted to not allow greenhouses, truck gardens and nurseries, SBR service
establishments, and SBR mixed-used establishments. A few months after this application was
considered, the Hana Advisory Committee looked at another application and approved the
zoning without any restrictions, without any conditions. That particular applicant had a specific
commercial use in mind that he spoke about.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Do you recall what that use was?
MS. MCLEAN: It was.. .I'll defer to Danny on that. It was...
MR. DIAS: He, he's a fisherman in Hana so what he wants to do is, is process fish that he catches on
his property, so it's like a fish processing...I don't want to use the word "center". I don't know
exactly what word to use, but a use like that to process fish.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. But there were no conditions or placed on him other than...
MR. DIAS: There, there was one, and it was that his, his fish processing had to be of a neighborhood
scale. They didn't want something huge, but, but that was it, just limited to the size.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MS. MCLEAN: And something that was brought up with that application and also applies with this one
is that any proposed development, whether it be residential or commercial would have to go
through some degree of SMA review, 'cause both properties are within the Special Management
Area.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: On both properties?
MS. MCLEAN: Both properties. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Do you have any concerns with the, with this measure as outlined?
MS. MCLEAN: With the restrictions?
-
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Do you think they.. .we should remove them or just leave them?
MS. MCLEAN: We actually, Danny and I met earlier today and talked about this. And it, it, it's a hard
call to make. On the one hand, we do want to honor the Hana Advisory Committee's
recommendation, which the Maui Planning Commission just.. .they didn't really discuss the
details of the conditions, they went along with the recommendation as it was sent to them. There
were only five members present at the Hana Advisory Committee meeting, and there was some
compromise that had to take place in order for the item to move out of Committee. Apparently
there may have been one or two members that might not have voted for the change at all, but
went along with it so that it could move. It seemed that there was one person who didn't support
having the conditions, but they probably went along with it so it could move out.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. MCLEAN: So with only five members, with only a bare quorum there, you know, it's, it's hard to
say if they had had the full make-up of the Commission there, would that outcome have been any
different? That's hard to say.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, the conditions are basically the overall use, not specific things that he must
do in order to use the property as requested. Is that correct?
MS. MCLEAN: That's right. It limits it just to the single-family, duplex and bed and breakfast.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But it basically limits it to what he requested.
MS. MCLEAN: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MS. MCLEAN: Correct. I think since then either, well, today he requested the conditions not be.. .that
that restriction not be imposed, but it might have been at the Hana Advisory Committee, he
mentioned possibly doing a small art gallery. I don't know if he has any specific uses in mind,
and that was something we talked about, Danny and I spoke about earlier today, you know, if
there were, if there was something specific that he had in mind, that might be a way to consider
allowing maybe limited SBR uses. You know, if those were identified, you could say, well these
one or two things would be okay rather than everything that's listed under SBR.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: When did.. .when did this application first come in? How long has it been in
the process and is...
MR. DIAS: Early 2010.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So, it's about 18 months. So, Chair, if you wouldn't mind, I'd like have
the applicant come forward and, and explain what he, what he would intend to use the property
for if we, if we relaxed the condition, and, or maybe I can ask him when he gets up there, but...
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, I'll call the applicant forward?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No objection.
CHAIR CARROLL: Would you please come to the microphone and identify yourself at the
microphone?
MR. ROMAIN: My name is John Romain.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Mr. Romain, the question I had was when we have the...as long a
process as this is, and I, and I apologize for you having to go through it for as long as you have,
but the challenge that we get faced with all the time is when something is approved by another
body, we tend not to mess with it a whole lot, well, I shouldn't say that, we do, but the question I
had was did you have the thoughts or the intention to set up an art gallery or whatever else you
were hoping to do previously, so that you could've asked the question at the Hana Advisory
Committee or the Planning Commission?
MR. ROMAIN: Quite frankly I thought of that afterwards when I thought what, what am I going to lose
on this? And I was trying to imagine...I've been a resident for, for 25 years in Hana and I
thought well, what if...I do travel and I'd like to travel more and I have two daughters that like to
come over and stay. And I thought if I had a little Internet based picking up, you know, carvings
and such, that I would sell, that would be one possible use. I must say, in all... and that, that level
would probably be allowable under the home use bill that's moving forward. So, in absolute
truth, this is probably not going to affect my life either way.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MR. ROMAIN: I'm a little miffed, is really what it is, is because I went first, and it was a rather more
controversial one after me, and I assume I'm going to be paying the full SBR tax rate and having
only half of the allowable uses. It's just...it's a point of honor, if, if you will. I understand your
position, and I certainly don't want to challenge this if it...no matter what way it goes, I'll be
grateful. If I could clarify one thing too about what was brought up earlier about the
inconsistency between the Community Plan and the SBR. In the Hana Community Plan, it
specifically says it encourages overnight accommodations to be in the Urban District, so I'm
both in the Urban District and SBR, so there really isn't a...the Plan does not prohibit, it simply
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tries to narrow it into the Urban District and that's right out of the Plan. I hope that...I hope I
didn't step out of line in backing up on that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, under the SBR are you being taxed at Commercial or at the...
MR. ROMAIN: Well, no one has done that yet. That, that since this is the first SBR one and you folks
set the rates, so I have no idea. I'm assuming that it's going to be higher than Residential. I
mean, I certainly have to take the.. .not take the homeowners deduction, I know that much, but
then, if there's a higher rate...and again, it's purely for me a matter of principle and I think,
consistency. And I think as was brought out at the hearing that putting the restrictions on the
zoning thing should be an extreme situation and not the norm. And so, after that went through, I
thought, well, I'd like to present this, and just let it off my chest, but I, I certainly don't want to
complicate your lives with this either.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Question for the Department.
CHAIR CARROLL: Are you through with the applicant?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Not, not just yet.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, okay. Could you stay by the microphone, please?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You mentioned that if they were.. .let's say if he wanted to do an art gallery or
some.. .something else other than what was allowed or what is...what he's doing currently. If we,
if we gave him the same conditions as the other guy, what process would he need to go through if
he wanted to establish an art gallery?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. McLean?
MS. MCLEAN: I don't think he'd have to get...well, if he were to construct a structure for that then he
would have to get an SMA Permit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If he were to construct, he would have... SMA Permit.
MS. MCLEAN: And just depending on the size, and, and potential impacts, it could be an
Administrative Permit, you know, an SMA Minor or it could be an SMA Major that would have
to go to Hana Advisory Committee, and then the Maui Planning Commission if it were a larger
structure with greater impacts.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, if I'm understanding it correctly, if he wanted to do something like that, he
would have to still go back through if he wanted to construct something, he would still need to
go back through the Ham Advisory Committee, and then through the Planning Commission?
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MS. MCLEAN: If it would.. .if it was a major...if it was a major development, if it was a development,
yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So what...is that, is that now $500,000 and above?
MS. MCLEAN: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So if we change it, and he wants to do something that's going to cost
him $300,000, he doesn't need to come back for anything other than a Minor SMA. Does that
need to go through the Ham Advisory Committee?
MS. MCLEAN: The Minor SMA would be approved administratively by the Planning Department, but
it gets reported to the Maui Planning Commission -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
MS. MCLEAN: --and the Maui Planning Commission does have an East Maui member, a Hana
member. So it would get reported to them; they wouldn't have to approve it, but it gets reported
to them.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. I don't have any other questions. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Anybody have any questions for the applicant? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, no, not for the applicant.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh. You can sit down. Thank you very much. Proceed, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: For the Department, when the SBR Zoning was created, any
comments from the Real Property Tax Division in regards to the taxing of SBRs?
MS. MCLEAN: I don't know. I don't recall. I, I wasn't with the Department at the time.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Giroux, would you, would you know since you sit in
the.. .all of those meetings?
MR. GIROUX: No, I'm, I'm not sure if there was any discussion specifically on that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion before the Chair gives his recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation?
- 14 -
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair! Just real quick.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: As, as you're a representative from Hana and East Maui, what is
your...have you heard the comments through the community there, and... on your personal, I just
wanted to have your personal comments.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. The Chair, along with Mr. Pontanilla has served on the
Planning...Maui Planning Commission. I also served on the Advisory...the Hana Advisory
Council.. .the Planning Commission, and my policy has always been and the Planning
Commission policy has always generally been to honor the recommendations of the Hana
Planning Commission [sic]. And I still honor the recommendations of the Hana Planning
Commission [sic] unless there is something exceptional that you can see it was an obvious
mistake or something. Other than that, I will always honor the Hana Planning Commission [sic].
And especially since the applicant has said he has no problem either way, he can exist, I will
honor the Ham Planning Commission's recommendation. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Recommendation? Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, the Chair will first entertain a motion to recommend passage on first
reading of a proposed bill entitled, A Bill For An Ordinance To Change Zoning From Urban
Reserve District To Service Business Residential District (Conditional Zoning) For Property
Situated At 4869 Uakea Road, Hana, Maui, Hawaii, and incorporating--we have no, any
amendments, we have no amendments because that's in there--incorporating any nonsubstantive
revisions and filing of County Communication 11-285.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Any further discussion?
Seeing none, all those in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried. Five "ayes", no "noes", with Members Mateo, Baisa,
Couch, and Hokama excused. Thank you.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair White, Councilmembers
Cochran, Pontanilla and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Baisa, Couch, Hokama and Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FIRST READING OF REVISED BILL AND FILING OF
COMMUNICATION.

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, on the first, on our first Item LU-24, I do not think I asked the
Members, if I put in the motion to.. .for any nonsubstantive revisions. Is there any problem with
me including that in there?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no problem. No objection.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.

LU-23

CONDITIONAL PERMIT AMENDMENT TO CONTINUE THE OPERATION OF
A SALON WITHIN THE COUNTY RU-0.5 RURAL DISTRICT (PUKALANI)
(C.C. No. 11-294)

CHAIR CARROLL: Moving on. Committee is in receipt... (clears throat)... excuse me. The
Committee is in receipt of a proposed bill entitled A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE GRANTING
WILLIAM E. CAMBRA AND KATHLEEN A. CAMBRA, dba as SHAMPOO-U & SPA, TOO,
LLC, AN EXTENSION OF A CONDITIONAL PERMIT TO OPERATE A HAIR, SKIN, AND
NAIL SALON WITHIN THE COUNTY RU-0.5 RURAL DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY
SITUATED AT TAX MAP KEY NO. (2) 2-3-032:003, at 212 KULA HIGHWAY, KULA,
MAUI, HAWAII. The purpose of the proposed bill is to grant a request from William and
Kathleen Cambra for an extension through December 22, 2019, of a Conditional Permit to
continue the operation of a salon within the County RU-0.5 Rural District on approximately
2.119 acres located at 212 Kula Highway, Maui, Hawaii. I'll now ask the Planner Livit Caulene

MS. CALLENTINE: Callentine. Callentine, thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: --to comment, please. Thank you.
MS. CALLENTINE: Okay. Thank you, Chair and, and good afternoon. And as you know this project
is for a time extension of a Conditional Permit, and it could have actually been done
administratively, but we, we granted to, to applicants who had already gone to the Maui Planning
Commission prior to passage of the County ordinance allowing for a Planning Department
review and approval of Conditional Permit time extensions, we gave the choice to applicants as
to whether to go ahead and go through the, the process established by that ordinance, or whether
to follow up and go through the process established by the ordinance which granted him his
original Conditional Permit. The applicant in this case elected to go ahead and follow through
with the original method, and that's why we've come before you today. So just by way of
reminder, with this property, a State District Boundary Amendment from Agriculture to Rural, a
Change In Zoning from County Agriculture to Rural, and a Conditional Permit granting William
E. and Kathleen Cambra dba Shampoo-U & Spa Too, LLC the right to operate a hair, skin, and
nail salon in the RU Rural.. .in the Rural RU-0.5 District. Those were all approved through
ordinance, and they were all effective December 22, 2006. And in a timely manner, the applicant
requested a time extension to the Maui Planning Department of the Conditional Permit and the
Land Use Commission Special Use Permit which had been approved subsequent to the
establishment of the Conditional Permit. On February 22, 2011, the Maui Planning Commission
held a public hearing on the request for time extension. Six commissioners voted in favor of a
motion recommending approval of the Conditional Permit to County Council and two of the
members were excused. There was no testimony submitted or received at that time, nor letters
received. The minutes of the Maui Planning Commission meeting were approved on
July 12, 2011, and the Department transmitted a request for ordinance to Corporation Counsel in
August of 2011. Later that month, the Department of the Corporation Counsel did transmit our
draft ordinance and we subsequently transmitted it to you in October of 2011. During this time,
the Staff visited the property and observed that the salon appears to be operating in harmony with
the rural character of the neighborhood, and there have been no complaints filed with the County
regarding the existing hair, skin, and nail salon. There were as I said, no issues raised by
members of the public at the last public hearing; however, the Planning Commission did have a
couple of questions. And Staff wanted to be able to address those today, follow up with, with
those, and one of them was Commissioner Hiranaga stated that the property is serviced by two
cesspools and this is a quote, "...and I believe this is a commercial operation. That operation
cannot be serviced by a cesspool." And they.. .he requested that the Department check with the
Department of Health to see that it was in compliance. And Staff did check with the Department
of Health, in fact I've followed up again today with them, but the applicant stated at the time of
the Planning Commission hearing that he had been given approval by the EPA Department of
Health, Environmental Protection Agency in San Francisco, and they had provided him with
specific language to provide for the Department of Health in, in Hawaii. And that was he, he, he
had to come up with a usage of the restroom facility as a low usage facility, and he had to post
signs stating there were, there were no public restrooms on site, and he keeps the door to the
restroom locked and anyone using it must ask for the key beforehand from the front desk. And
that was accepted by the Department of Health, and they actually reviewed the project, and we
do have on file from prior review, March 8 th of 2005, a letter from Department of Health, they
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had no comment at that time. I understand that since then, the applicant has been in discussion
with the Department of Health as well, and today I confirmed with Patti Kitkowski that a
wastewater engineer had, had indeed recommended the applicant call the EPA, and that Roland
Tejano of Maui Office of Department of Health did confirm that approval. However, the Staff
does not have correspondence of the...of...from that confirmation, because that, that exchange
actually took place after approval of the permits that...the Conditional and Special Use Permit
and those took place during obtaining of the Building Permit, which we weren't a party to.
Okay, so at that, at that hearing... (clears throat)... excuse me, the Planning Commission did
recommend approval subject to six standard conditions. Condition number 2 regarding time
period and condition number 7 regarding hours of operation were amended as the
applicant...the...of the Land Use Commission Permit was amended, and of the Conditional
Permit is recommended to be amended. And conditions numbers 6, 8, and 9 of the Conditional
Permit were recommended to be deleted, because the terms of them have been fulfilled in
entirety. And then, one more item that has come to our attention is, is that Council Services
identified a discrepancy in the area of the parcel, and we had, in some records, we had an acreage
of 2.115, and in other records we had acreage of 2.119. And the applicant provided to all of us
today a letter from the surveyor Newcomer and Lee, describing the reason for this discrepancy
and speculating that this discrepancy was due to a change in the sophistication of the technology
between the time that the maps were drawn and today's computer driven analysis. So with that, I
conclude my report and am open to any questions, and the applicant of course, is here with us in
the audience today.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Giroux, do you have any comment?
MR. GIROUX: No, none at this time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, the floor is now open. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. This is not in regards to.. .well, in a way it is. You, you
know, on the liability insurance of $1 million, have we ever take a look at increasing that, or
have the Department take a look at increasing that, because I understand that the bike companies
pay $3 million liability insurance.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. McLean?
MS. MCLEAN: We have imposed that condition based on a recommendation from the Department of
the Corporation Counsel. I've seen larger amounts depending on the use, like the tour bike
companies. There's, I, I'm assuming, much greater potential for some kind of mishap, but for a
proposed use like this, I haven't seen amounts go above the one million, that's sort of the
standard at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, you don't know if we have a standard of some kind that we
follow?
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MS. MCLEAN: A million has been the standard and they've recommended greater amounts if it's a
much more intensive use.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Yeah, since I was on the Planning Commission was like
$1 million -MS. MCLEAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --you know, nine years ago, yeah.
MS. MCLEAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel?
MR. GIROUX: Yeah. I, I think we would probably defer to Risk Management as to see if this million
dollars is something that we need to review. I know the million dollars started as a response to
seeing some land use issues arise where there...the County was being sued for other people's
activities -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. GIROUX: --and we were only a permitting party. So, the, the million dollars we felt was a good
threshold. That discussion could come out again. I advise the, the Board of Variances and the
Planning Commission, and this conversation has happened, but nothing solid or standard has
come out of those conversations. We've, we've had variances which seem so manini that we
would want to bring those down to, you know, help the homeowner -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Uh-huh.
MR. GIROUX: --who's stuck in that situation, but there is other activities where larger corporations
might be involved where, you know, the minimum might be raised if, if there looks like there
may be environmental hazards involved. So, I think that conversation has to be made with
Corp. Counsel and with Risk Management, because the, those two would, would need to sit
down and really do an analysis of are we adequately protecting the County.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. And, and that's the main concern for my questioning, the
liability insurance is protecting this County so that if, if we get sued then at least we get a means
of recovering costs, yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion before I give my recommendation? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And maybe it's a disclosure also but Willie
Cambra, I've had my hair done very professionally by him, and I...they run a top notch, very
professional hair, hair salon Upcountry, and it blends in very well with the surroundings. So for
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me, I completely support this company and this application and, and believe they truly believe
they deserve to have extension on this. So if you want to see his artwork with my hair, it is in the
photo down in our lobby entrance on the wall. Thank you, Chair. Ready for your
recommendation.
CHAIR CARROLL: If I ever grow hair I'll catch a ride up there with you and see them too. Thank
you. Any further discussion? If not, the Chair will give his recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation?
CHAIR CARROLL: The Chair will first entertain a motion to recommend passage on first reading of a
proposed bill entitled A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE GRANTING WILLIAM E. CAMBRA &
KATHLEEN A. CAMBRA of...also...doing business as SHAMPOO-U & SPA TOO, LLC, AN
EXTENSION OF A CONDITIONAL PERMIT TO OPERATE A HAIR, SKIN, AND NAIL
SALON WITHIN THE COUNTY RU-0.5 RURAL DISTRICT FOR PROPERTY SITUATED
AT TAX KEY MAP KEY NUMBER (2) 2-3-032:003, 212 KULA HIGHWAY, KULA, MAUI,
HAWAII, and incorporating any nonsubstantive revisions and filing of County
Communication 11-294.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR CARROLL: Been moved by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Pontanilla. Discussion? Seeing
none, all in favor of the motion, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR CARROLL: Opposed? Motion carried. Five "ayes", no "noes", Members Mateo, Baisa,
Couch, and Hokama excused.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair Carroll, Vice-Chair White, Councilmembers
Cochran, Pontanilla and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Councilmembers Baisa, Couch, Hokama and Mateo.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FIRST READING OF REVISED BILL AND FILING OF
COMMUNICATION.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, this brings us to the end of our last meeting of the year. Thank you very
much. I really appreciate and the applicants appreciate your attendance, and wishing you and all
in the audience and out in television land a Merry Christmas and a happy and prosperous holiday
and new year. And with that, this Land Use Committee meeting of December le is adjourned.
. . . (gavel) . . .
ADJOURN: 2:27 p.m.
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Land Use Committee
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